
 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of June 5
th

, 2012 1 

Town of Eliot 
REGULAR PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES June 5th, 2012 7PM 

 
ITEM 1 - ROLL CALL  

Present: Steve Beckert – Chairman, Jeff Duncan – Vice Chairman, Dennis Lentz, 
Larry Bouchard and Greg Whalen. 
 
Also present: Jim Marchese, Code Enforcement Officer. 
 

ITEM 2 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ITEM 3 – MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

ITEM 4 - REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES AND INVOICES AS NEEDED 
None. 
 
ITEM 5 - REVIEW OF "NOTICE OF DECISION" LETTERS, AS NEEDED 
None. 
 
ITEM 6 - PUBLIC APPLICATIONS OR PLANNING BOARD BUSINESS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 
 

A. 10-minute public input session 
 
Public input session opened. 
 
No comments. 
 
Public input session closed.  
 

B. Continued discussion on clarifying the definitions of “Agriculture” and 
“Animal Breeding and Care.” 

 
Kate Pelletier stated that the Board should have received Draft #1 of the proposed 
amendments to agriculture regulations. She stated that she created two separate 
definitions for commercial and non-commercial agricultural operations and clarified that 
the existing definition of “agriculture” is specific to Shoreland zones only. Having two 
separate classes of agricultural uses will serve to differentiate between backyard farms 
and commercial farming operations. Definitions of “agricultural products”, “animal 
husbandry”, “greenhouse”, “livestock”, “livestock husbandry” and “plant nursery” were 
also added to Sec. 1-2. She explained that she incorporated the two classes of 
agricultural operations into the table of land uses in Sec. 45-290 and replaced “animal 
breeding and care,” a previously undefined use, with “animal husbandry” and “livestock 
husbandry.” She stated that existing ordinance language required that any building 
housing animals maintain a 100’ setback from all property lines, which effectively 
prohibited the keeping of animals, including chickens, on smaller lots. New setback 
requirements and provisions for reducing those setbacks have been established based 
on the zoning district and type of use, which will allow more people to engage in 
agricultural uses.  
 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of June 5
th

, 2012 2 

The Board agreed they needed additional time to review Draft #1 and scheduled 
continued review of the draft for the next meeting.  
 

C. Continued review of proposed fee schedule amendments. 
 
Kate Pelletier stated that the Board should have Draft 1 of the proposed fee schedule 
amendments. Since the last meeting an annual fee for inspection of stormwater 
management facilities by the public works director and a driveway permit fee had been 
added. Also added were fees requested by the code enforcement officer for the review 
of various land uses under his authority including timber harvesting in the Shoreland 
zone, filling/earth moving, essential services and home offices. She stated that she was 
still working on a more user-friendly layout of the actual fee schedule. 
 
Steve Beckert stated that he objected to the idea of having separate fees for land uses 
reviewed by the code enforcement officer. He stated that he believed reviewing land 
uses was part of the code officer’s job description and didn’t warrant charging 
homeowners a fee.  
 
The Board agreed. 
 
Dennis Lentz requested that several examples be provided that illustrate the cost of a 
building permit under the old fee structure compared to the cost under the new 
structure. He stated that it would be helpful to show examples for common building 
permits like sheds and new construction of a single family dwelling.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated that she would attempt to work with the code officer to provide 
some examples of permit fees with the old fee schedule versus the new and would 
incorporate the Board’s other comments into a new draft for the next meeting.  
 
ITEM 7 - ACTION ITEM LIST  
None.  
 
ITEM 8 – CORRESPONDENCE, OTHER AS NEEDED 

 May 18th, 2012 letter from Jim Marchese, Code Enforcement Officer 
regarding consideration of an ordinance amendment to allow semi-
permeable surfaces in the Shoreland zone. 

 
Steve Beckert stated that the Board should have received the May 18th letter 
from the code officer stating that the Board of Appeals requested that the 
Planning Board consider allowing permeable pavers in the Shoreland zone. He 
asked Jim Marchese to elaborate on the issue.  
 
Jim Marchese stated that Eliot’s ordinances currently allow 20% maximum lot 
coverage on properties in the Shoreland zones, which must include all non-
vegetated surfaces. Some towns have amended their ordinances to allow the 
use of permeable pavers while applying a reduction credit in the total amount of 
non-vegetated area.  
 
Jeff Duncan asked if a homeowner employed some sort of permeable paver on 
their lot now if they would receive any sort of lot coverage credit. 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of June 5
th

, 2012 3 

 
Jim Marchese stated that the ordinances do not include any provisions for lot 
coverage credits in any situation.  
 
Steve Beckert asked if MeDEP would allow the town to change their ordinances 
to allow for some sort of relief. 
 
Jim Marchese stated that he wasn’t sure but could find out for the next meeting.  
 
Greg Whalen asked how long this sort of technology had existed. 
 
Jim Marchese estimated permeable pavement had been around for the last 10 
years approximately.  
 
Greg Whalen asked if there any known problems with that kind of technology.  
 
Jim Marchese stated that some pervious concrete can clog if it’s not vacuumed 
periodically. He stated that he would like to find out more about what kind of 
maintenance is typically required for this type of surface and how it holds up to 
winter weather, plowing, etc.  
 
Steve Beckert stated that he’d also like to find out if other towns have adopted 
the use of permeable pavement and if so, what sort of issues they might have 
encountered. 
 
Jeff Duncan stated that the University of New Hampshire offers workshops 
specifically on permeable pavement and that they have an example on the 
campus that you can see.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated that she would get the Board information on the UNH 
seminar.  
 
The Board agreed to continue their discussion on this issue at the next Planning 
Board meeting.  
  
ITEM 9 - SET AGENDA AND DATE FOR NEXT MEETNG 
The next regular Planning Board meeting was scheduled for June 19th, 2012. 
 
ITEM 10 – ADJOURN 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to adjourn at 7:55 PM. 
Larry Bouchard seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs.  

____________________________ 
                                                                          Stephen Beckert, Chairman 

     Date approved: _______________ 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Kate Pelletier, Recording Secretary 


